
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, December 8, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/489100461. You can also dial in using 


your phone: +1 (646) 749-3129 . Access Code: 489-100-461. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Nomination Papers for Local Offices—Clerk Licht 


 December 22, 2020 Council Meeting 


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


Personnel (9/23/20, 10/1/20, 10/19/20); Finance (10/27/20)  


 


3. Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 


submit it by 6:30 p.m. on December 8, 2020. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Consent Agenda 


A. November 24, 2020 Council Minutes 


B. R-181-2020- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 


Licenses  


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-26-2020- An ordinance repealing Zoning Code Section 78-205(12) and all ordinance references 


to a group development within the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances (Plan Commission 


recommends approval 7-0)        SECOND READING 


 
 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/489100461

tel:+16467493129,,489100461

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





NEW BUSINESS 


 


6. R- 179-2020- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Approving Agreement 


to Undertake Development in the Plat of Abel Plat (Finance approved 5-0 on November 24, 2020)  


 


7. R-180-2020- Resolution to approve the City Attorney Agreement for Legal Services with Stafford 


Rosenbaum for calendar year 2021 (Finance meets December 8, 2020)  


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch  


 








PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, September 23, 2020 @ 7:00 pm 
Remotely Via GoToMeeting 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Fred Hundt (Vice-Chair), Thomas Majewski, Mayor Swadley and Director  
               Gillingham  
 


Absent:  Sid Boersma 
 


Also in attendance: Director Hebert, Director Glynn, and City Clerk Holly Licht, Fire Chief Joshua Ripp,  
                                   Deputy Clerk Candee Christian 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm. 
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the Wednesday, August 19, 2020 Personnel Committee meeting 
minutes. 
Motion to approve Hundt, second Majewski, Approved 4-0 


 
3. Communications/Updates 


• Director Gillingham noted that for Human Resources & Risk Management, working 
remotely is business as usual and yet not business as usual. HR is still doing a lot of 
recruiting and has had some recent hires. 


• Director Gillingham stated that the full time custodian has been let go and the part 
time custodian has been moved into the full time position, so we are recruiting for a 
part time custodian at this time. She also noted the hire of two part time dispatcher and 
the on-going recruitment for a full time dispatcher to replace one that recently 
terminated her employment. She stated that there has been one hire of a Journeyman 
Lineman for the Utilities Dept. and that we are still recruiting for the position. Director 
Gillingham noted that there has been an increase in hires for the Fire & EMS 
Departments. 


• Director Gillingham asked if the Personnel Committee would prefer a summary of 
recruiting/hiring/terminations emailed to them or if they preferred the update to be 
brought to them as communications at the monthly meeting. There was some 
discussion and it was decided that they would like the email.  


  
4. **Discussion and possible action regarding 2021 Personnel requests  


Chair Reeves explained that the Director from each department would take their turn in the 
order that they had arrived for the meeting. She further stated that the committee would listen 
to their presentations, take some time to ask questions and then move on to the next 
department. She noted that there would be no discussion or decisions made until after the 
other three departments presentations were heard at the next meeting.  
Mayor Swadley asked that the committee keep in mind what their priorities might be as they 
are listening to the requests of each department. He further stated that when Director Friedl 
joins the meeting next week that they could go over some of the knowns and unknowns of 
what is available. 


f) Recreation Presentation 
Director Glynn presented his request for a full time Parks & Recreation Assistant. (See 
attached Recreation Presentation). Director Glynn spoke of new initiatives and 
anticipated projects that would take up much of his and the Recreation Supervisors 
time making it difficult to get the low-level tasks completed. Director Glynn stated that 
his department does a lot of things with not a lot of people. He stated they wanted to 
take the part time assistant position to full time but that they would take any hours 
they could get in order to have those low-level tasks completed. He further stated 







that Stoughton is the only Recreation Dept. in the area to not have a full time assistant 
on staff.  
Chair Reeves asked Director Glynn to please submit the information he has on the 
new initiatives and anticipated projects that he mentioned during this meeting via 
email. Director Glynn responded that he would email them to HR Generalist Skarda 
for addition into the minutes. (See attached Recreation 2021 Projects). 


e) Public Works Presentation 
Director Hebert presented his request for a full time Parks Maintenance Machine 
Operator. (See attached Public Works Presentation). Director Hebert stated that the 
department has asked more from the Parks Maintenance Supervisor in an 
administrative capacity. Director Hebert went over the list of duties that the Parks 
Maintenance Supervisor has taken on. He stated that the Parks Maintenance 
Supervisor is the only full time employee in Parks. He further stated that having another 
full time employee would ease the burden on that position and allow the Supervisor 
to train and supervise his seasonal employees more effectively. Director Hebert stated 
that his concern was that the parks service level may begin to slide backwards. He 
stated that it is his fear that due to the heavy workload and additional stress, the Parks 
Maintenance Supervisor may burn out if we are not able to provide him with some 
help. 
Mayor Swadley stated that from what he has seen Hebert’s time is more in demand 
for construction and TDS projects. His time is being diverted and his team has stepped 
up but that the stress is on Director Hebert and there is a breaking point. He stated 
that we need to keep a good thing going. 
Director Gillingham stated due to the changing processes the Park’s Maintenance 
Supervisor is on call 24-7. He is a very talented individual and we want to avoid 
stretching our talent to far. 
Vice-Chair Hundt asked what would be the cost savings of reducing one long-term 
seasonal position. Director Hebert stated the department would save $16,000 if they 
dropped one long-term seasonal employee. He also stated that the City is currently 
negotiating with the state DOT for additional funds to extend the connecting highway 
boundaries that currently end at Hoel and expend them to Roby Road. This extension 
would net the City an additional $28,942 that could be earmarked for this position, as 
there are maintenance duties associated with the landscaping in the roundabouts 
and sidewalks in this corridor as it gets built out in 2022. 
Mayor Swadley stated there had not been a decision made regarding the 
roundabouts yet. There was some discussion regarding what place the new position 
would provide for snowplowing. 


a) City Clerk Presentation 
City Clerk Licht presented her request for extra hours for the Deputy Clerk in order to 
bring the position up to full time. City Clerk Licht stated that with voter registration and 
absentee voting as well as operator’s licenses, taxi and chicken licenses, Johns 
Disposal, being the liaison to the Food Pantry, and updating the City’s website in 
regards to Clerks office updates, etc., the Deputy Clerk’s duties require more hours. 
She stated that her fear is that if we do not fully fund the full time position, there may 
be inaccuracies and that there is also a risk of burnout for the employee in this 
position. 







Mayor Swadley stated that Clerk Licht was modest about the hours she put in. He 
listed the committees she is involved with and stated the City risks burnout with Clerk 
Licht as well. Clerk Licht stated the Deputy Clerk is at 30 hours a week right now and 
pays for a higher portion of her benefits than a full time employee does. Director 
Gillingham stated that with a move to 40 hours that would increase the City’s portion 
of benefits, WRS, and all other full time benefits. Mayor Swadley stated they had 
discussed the use of volunteers for counting ballots but that that might increase 
inaccuracies. Chair Reeves stated that she could see where during elections that the 
department would be extremely busy but asked if during off election season there is 
really the need for a full time Deputy Clerk. Clerk Licht stated that elections are not 
just at election time. There is at least 8 weeks prep beforehand and weeks after an 
election. Clerk Licht spoke of records management as something her department 
needed to get done as well. Mayor Swadley stated that this was a busy year with the 
census, and elections, and that the department will be responsible for redistricting 
and food carts, etc. He stated the department has excellent teamwork. 


 
 


5. Future Agenda Items 


• Parks & Recreation Structure 


• Work Rules – New Format 
 


6. Motion to adjourn Hundt, second Majewski, Approved 4-0. Meeting adjourned 8:03pm. 







RECREATION ASSISTANT 
STAFFING REQUEST 


Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director 







JUSTIFICATION – CURRENT STAFFING 
LEVELS  


• Director 


• Recreation Supervisor 


• Youth Center Manager 


• Youth Center Assistant (2) - .75 FTE Total 


• Recreation Assistant - .38 FTE 







JUSTIFICATION – DEPARTMENT 
RESPONSIBILITIES 


• Parks Management


• Property & Facility Development 


• Volunteer Management 


• Visitor Services 


• Youth Center Afterschool Program 


• Recreation Programming 


• Troll Beach  







• 2020 City Staffing Levels – 8.85 FTE 


• Median Staffing Level – 12.61 FTE 







• Operations/Maintenance – 6.43 FTE


• Programmers – 3.28 FTE


• Administration – 2.40 FTE 


• Parks & Recreation Current – 4.13 FTE 







IMPACT – RECREATION ASSISTANT 


• Perform lower level tasks 


• Visitor Services 


• Administrative Functions 


• Low Level Programming Tasks


• Delegation of Tasks – Parks & Recreation Director to Recreation Supervisor 


• Troll Beach


• Parks Management 


• Volunteer Management 


• Opportunities – Parks & Recreation Director 


• Strategic Planning 


• Property & Facility Development


• Personnel Management – Cross Training 







ALTERNATIVES 


• Expand the Rec Assistant hours 


• Less of an impact than FTE 







2021 Park Projects  


Yahara Riverfront Development – Major Tasks  


• Revise BUILD Grant application 
• WDNR Recreational Grant Program application  
• DNR permitting meetings  
• County coordination meetings  
• Interfacing with the Hub and other media  
• Township informational meetings 
• Steering committee meetings    


Racetrack Park Master Plan 


• Layout parking, ADA pathways, and other major infrastructure. Would also give park expansion 
options.  


• Estimated 12 months to complete. Racetrack Road is scheduled to be re-done in 2024. This 
could be pushed back one year, but it is essential that it is funded in 2022. The parking lots need 
to be replaced and there are major cost savings if they are planned when the road construction 
takes place. A realistic timeline is: 


o 2022 – Master Plan Development (layout parking and ADA pathways) 
o 2023 – Parking Lot & ADA Pathway Engineering  
o 2024 – Construction (in conjunction with road project)  


• Work closely with the consultant on public input plan. This is what I did for Mandt Park’s: 
o Refined survey with consultant  
o Coordinated and attended stakeholder focus group meetings   
o Coordinated and attended public meeting for concept options  


• Attended meetings with consultants – Kick-off and periodical progress meetings  


Dunkirk Park Master Plan 


• The sport court needs to be replaced in 2022 and the playground and sport court need to be 
relocated for better visibility. Before the investment is made, a master plan should be 
completed to see how the park is used, identify any unknown issues, and what the users want 
to see improved. This is a 12-month process.  


• Internally complete the master plan which includes: 
o Public Input Process 


 Surveys  
 Neighborhood Stakeholder Meetings 
 Concept/Draft Plan Feedback  


o Concept/Draft Plan Development  
o Final Master Plan Development  
o Compiling Master Plan Report   


Virgin Lake Trail Extension Engineering   


• This is to connect and widen the Virgin Lake Trail from Roby Road to the 51 West Development. 
It creates off-road trail linkage between Virgin Lake Park, east 51 West Park, and future 
Linnerud development park.   







2021 Park Projects  


• Solicit quotes for engineering expense  
• Select engineering firm  
• Kick-off and progress meetings  


Rotary Park Restrooms  


• The project was bid out this past summer and was over budget. The original engineer’s estimate 
for excavation and connecting utility laterals (used for budgeting) was $3,000 and a recent 
quote was $35,930. Another unknown expense was the building’s foundation. The geotechnical 
report found that there are poor soils and that a more extensive foundation is needed which 
costs an additional $11,000 over the budgeted estimate.  


• I have started soliciting quotes for the site work and it has been difficult finding an excavator 
able to do the work. I’m currently waiting to hear back from a local excavator that is believed to 
be able to do the work. It is likely we would be 10-20% over the budgeted amount if I act as the 
general contractor versus 50%.  


• The construction may happen in the fall if the contractors are available, but it would most likely 
be a spring project.  


New Development Parks  


• There are two developments and three parks that are on the horizon and may need to be 
worked on in 2021. The latest I have heard is that Kettle Park West has been preliminary platted. 
The 51 West development has two parks since Highway 51 bisects the development. The 
developer would like to have the east park developed by 2022. A master plan for the parks need 
to be completed along with a cost analysis to budget for park infrastructure.  


Bjoin Park Prairie  


• Select a consultant to perform a prairie restoration and grow-in program at Bjoin Park to 
address wet turf grass areas that are difficult to maintain and unpleasant aesthetically. This was 
incorporated into the recently adopted Bjoin Park Master Plan.  







Equipment Operator –
Parks Maintenance
PROPOSED NEW POSITION







Overview of the Stoughton Parks System


• 23 Parks


• 8 Baseball/Softball Fields


• 9 Parks Shelters/Restrooms


• 13 Playground Structures


• 1 Splash Pad


• 1 Skate Park


• Frisbee Golf Park


• Troll Beach


• 5 Miles of Trail (Paved and Unpaved)


• 286.7 Acres / 120 Mowable







Current Parks Maintenance Staffing Levels


• Staffing


• 1 Full Time Working Supervisor


• 4 Long Term Seasonals


• 4 Short Term Seasonal


• According to the National Recreation and Parks Association, there should be 9.7 FTE’s for every 
10,000 residents.  


• Current FTE’s (Including Parks Maint/Park and Rec/Youth Center) 8.76


• Should have 12.61 based on a population of 13,000


• The working Parks Maintenance Supervisor is the only full time employee in Parks Maintenance







New Position Overview


• Full Time Employee – 2080 Hours


• Reports to the Parks Maintenance Supervisor


• *Equipment Operator Position


• Operates large CDL and Construction Style Equipment


• Construction and maintenance of parks trails and structures


including adding ADA pathways


• Performs parks maintenance duties as assigned


• Participates in Streets Snow Operations







Why is this Position Needed?


• We are asking more of the Parks Maintenance Supervisor from an administrative perspective:


• RFP’s/Quote packets for parks structure replacement


• Turf Management Program


• Oversee construction (Example: Lowell Park Playground, Norse Park Court and Paths)


• Manages the Parks Maintenance Operating Budget


• Assists the Director of PW with putting together the proposed operating budget


• Creates CIP  documents including quotes and supporting documents


• Coordinates with user group representatives on field, trail, and 


special event use 


• Coordinates volunteers (examples)


• Parks Signs (Adopt-A-Sign Program)


• Cummins Volunteer 


• Sport group work days 







Why this Position is Needed?  (Cont.)


• Would allow the Parks Maintenance Supervisor to actually supervise and train staff 


more effectively


• Currently they are having to operate equipment that 


the seasonals can’t run and supervise field operations 


at the same time.


• Being the only full time person, he is often pulled 


away from a task to meet with his staff, 


contractors or scheduled meetings.







Why this Position is Needed?  (Cont.)


• Currently borrowing Streets Operators to do parks work


• We all try to help each other, but the streets division is stretched thin as well


• In the winter, outside of snow operations, the Parks Supervisor is alone to 


perform necessary parks maintenance in preparation for the spring.


• Ice Rink


• Tree Trimming


• Shelter Maintenance


• Etc.







Why this Position is Needed?  (Cont.)


• Would Participate in Snow Operations


• We are in need of an additional snow operator


• To maintain adequate service levels for snow operations, 


we need to add an additional plow route.  


• Furthermore, if we have one employee sick, 


we have no one to fill that route, leaving 


that route unplowed until the other operators


finish their routes.







What if this Position is Not Filled?


• We fear our parks service level may start to slide backwards


• We would need to contract more work out when constructing parks features


• Examples of major projects that operators have helped with this past year:


• Lowell Park Playground Structure Removal and Site Preparation


• Norse Park Trail and Court Site Prep


• Major Trail Grading and Maintenance


• Brush Cutting with Skid Steer and Forestry Mower 


• Installing Drain Tile at Dunkirk Park


• Grading Ball Diamonds with the Grader







What if this Position is Not Filled? (Cont.)


• Added stress on the Parks Maintenance Supervisor to get tasks accomplished 


with no additional help from a skilled operator


• Administrative duties may take a back seat to getting field work done


• Snow operations will continue to see service times go up and overtime may go 


up as well







Potential Additional Funding Sources


• Reduction of 1 long term seasonal position $16,000


• Additional Connecting Highway Funds 


for maintenance of Hoel to Roby - $25,000







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, October 1, 2020 @ 6:00 pm 
Remote Via GoToMeeting 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Fred Hundt (Vice-Chair), Thomas Majewski, Sid Boersma, Mayor Swadley  


   and Director Gillingham  
 
 


Also in attendance: Police Chief Greg Leck, Director James Ramsey, Fire Chief Joshua Ripp,  
                                   Director Cindy McGlynn 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 
 


2. Communications/Updates 
Director Gillingham stated that HR is still recruiting for the Journeyman Lineman position. 
There were no further updates to report since last week’s meeting. 


  
3. **Discussion and possible action regarding 2021 Personnel requests  


Chair Reeves explained that the Director from each department would take their turn in the 
order that they had arrived for the meeting. She further stated that the committee would listen 
to their presentations, ask questions and then move on to the next department.  


a) Police Presentation 
Chief Leck had two requests for the 2021 budget.   
1- Community Service Employee from part-time to full time. 
2- An additional full time sworn Police Officer. 


  
• Community Service employee: This position was originally approved by 


the Council as a part time position at a higher wage rate($20) as the 
position was part-time and there would be no benefits. The Council was 
told the position would not go full time.  If there were additional needs, 
the City would look at adding another part time or limited term 
employee. Because of the wage, the position would not move to full 
time.  The Chief stated that this position has morphed into a vital role 
especially with reporting requirements. This position has also put forth a 
more consistent social media presence for the department. Chief Leck 
stated that this position is very active in parking enforcement and has 
expanded into motor vehicle registrations. This is a source of income 
bringing in $35,000. He stated that he would like to see this position be 
backup to the Dispatchers, assist the Office Manager, backup for the 
crossing guards so that the sworn Police Officers are not pulled away 
from regular duty. 
Alder Majewski stated that the duties that Chief Leck is describing sound 
like they are out of the scope of the original position description. Director 
Gillingham stated that this is true as the position description was focused 
on parking enforcement. She stated that with the addition of the duties 
described by Chief Leck, the position description would need to be 
rewritten and re-graded. Boersma asked if the position could go to ¾ 
time rather than full time. Director Gillingham stated that either way, a 
new position description would need to be written to reflect the duties 
and that WRS is available at 1200 hours per year. The cost would be 
between $24,000 and $65,000 ,with the benefits included, before the 







regrade. Majewski stated that the numbers would go up with the 
regrade. Director Gillingham stated that the position was never 
intended to have the hours increased. This position was never intended 
to qualify for benefits. Chair Reeves stated that she remembered Alder 
Jensen and Chief Leck favored the additional hours for the CSO last 
year because it would be a revenue producer. Chair Reeves asked if 
there was data regarding parking enforcement revenue. Chief Leck 
stated that in 2019 there was $17,000 - $18,000 more in revenue, but that 
this year due to COVID and downtown construction those numbers were 
down. He stated the licensing had really picked up and was bringing in 
additional revenue.   


 
• Full Time Sworn Officer Request: Chief Leck stated that his officers go call 


to call every day and there is no availability for traffic enforcement. He 
stated that they generally need to use overtime to cover and there is 
not much cushion for training, vacation, and comp time. Chief Leck 
stated they are still uncertain what the Stoughton School Board is going 
to decide in regards to the School Resource Officer (SRO). The School 
pays ¾ of the cost of the SRO. Alder Hundt asked Chief Leck if he knew 
how many hours of overtime were being used. Chief stated he did not 
have the numbers. Boersma asked if the position could be hired as part 
time instead of full time. Chief stated there is a hurdle due to the labor 
agreements that prevent the use of part-timers as primary. He said it is 
extremely difficult to find a pool of part timers. Majewski asked if, 
because school is virtual due to COVID, was the department using the 
SRO to fill in shifts.  Chief stated that yes, training is being done in house 
and they are covering shifts with the SRO for now. 
 


b) Library Presentation 
Director Ramsey presented two requests.  Both were to increase hours for existing 
positions.     


1- Library Administrative Assistant from 18 to 20 hours per week. 
2- Circulation Supervisor from 30 hours to 40 hours per week. 


 
• Library Administrative Assistant: (See attached Library Presentation). 


Director Ramsey asked that this position be moved from 18 hours per 
week to 20. He stated the compensation and benefits were not 
commensurate with the skills and responsibilities of the position. He 
stated that as the position stands, the department would be hard 
pressed to find someone to replace the person in the position should 
they decide to leave. Director Ramsey discussed the position 
responsibilities.  Director Ramsey was asked to work with Director Friedl to 
see if there were any efficiencies that could be gained by eliminated 
possible duplication of efforts between this position and Finance.  
  


• Library Circulation Supervisor position: Director Ramsey stated that he 
believes it is the only supervisory position within the City that is not full 







time. He stated that circulation is probably the busiest department 
within the Library. He stated it is the first desk you see when you enter. 
Director Ramsey stated that the person in this position is barely able to 
keep their head above water at 30 hours per week. Sometimes this 
affects the patrons when they are trying to return a damaged item as 
the Circulation Supervisor is the one that makes the decisions for 
damaged items. Alder Reeves asked if there were backup for this 
position when they are not there. Director Ramsey stated that while 
others can make some decisions, sometimes the patron has to return 
when the Circulation Supervisor is there. We would like to see a more 
consistent presence who is able to assist our patrons right away. Director 
Ramsey stated that the cost would be less than stated, as the person in 
the position would not be taking benefits. There was some discussion 
regarding accounting tasks that the position was doing that could be 
done by the Finance Department. Hundt asked what would be needed 
to make the position competitive. Director Ramsey stated it should 
eligible for time off, vacation and sick time. It should be eligible for all 
benefits. 


 
c) Fire Presentation 


Fire Chief Ripp presented a request for additional hours moving the Fire Technician 
position from 30 hours per week to 40 hours per week. 
 


• Chief Ripp requested to move the Fire Technician from 30 hours to 40 hours per 
week.  (See attached Fire Presentation). Chief Ripp stated the position has two 
components – emergency response and day-to-day operations. He stated that 
at 30 hours per week there are risks involved including the department being 
able to get out of the door fast and the ability to fight interior fires. Another 
concern was reporting.  If it is not done in a timely manner, it puts the City at 
risk for losing the departments 2% dues funding.  He stated the rigs might not be 
checked regularly, equipment may not be fixed in a timely manner and duties 
are often pushed to the Chief and Deputy Chief, which affects the 
responsibilities of those positions. Reeves asked about the 2% dues. Chief Ripp 
explained the 2% dues were 2% of the dues that the Fire Department pays to 
the State, which is paid back to the City with a formula that they designed. 
Director Gillingham asked what other communities staffing looks like. Chief Ripp 
stated the structures varied and gave examples.  Very few of his examples did 
not have full time firefighters on staff.  Boersma asked if the Fire fighters  were 
required to hold CDL’s. Ripp replied that the Fire Dept. is exempt from CDL 
requirements. 


  
4. **Discussion and possible action regarding the Personnel Committee recommendations for 


additional headcount or hours for the 2021 Budget 
Motion to move into closed session Boersma, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. Reeves read State 
Statute 19.85(1)(c) moving the meeting to closed session at 7:30 pm.  
Motion to move into open session Reeves, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. Moved into open 
session 7:56 pm. 







Majewski motion to approve the Public Works request of  one additional full time Machine 
Operator to start possibly in January of 2021, Hundt second, Approved 4-0 
Reeves motion that no presentations be made at the Committee of the Whole next week, 
Boersma second, Approved 4-0 
 


5. Future Agenda Items 


• Parks & Recreation Structure 


• Work Rules – New Format 
 


6. Motion to adjourn Boersma, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. Meeting adjourned 8:06pm. 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, October 19, 2020 @ 7:00 pm 
Remote Via GoToMeeting 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Fred Hundt (Vice-Chair), Thomas Majewski, Sid Boersma, Mayor Swadley  


   and Director Gillingham  
 
 


Also in attendance: Director Jill Weiss, Director Jamin Friedl 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm. 
 


2. Communications/Updates 
Director Gillingham stated that there was nothing to report since the last meeting. 
 


3. **Discussion and possible action regarding the 2021 Utilities Personnel Budget  
Director Weiss made her presentation (See attached Utilities Presentation).  
Director Weiss laid out her Strategic Alignment Plan (see attached, slide 6-8). She stated that 
the plan had three parts: People, Processes, and Technology.  She stated that the job 
descriptions were not all aligned with the tasks that are being performed. Director Weiss told 
the committee that the department’s GIS person had retired last year and had not been 
replaced. She stated that they were looking to leverage that position in a different way. 
Director Weiss stated that since 1991 while the population of Stoughton has risen 32%, the 
staffing of the Utilities Department has decreased by 14% (see attached, slide 9-10).  
Director Weiss told the committee that there were some retirements that could happen in the 
next few years and noted that there is no succession plan in place and that the sooner they 
started working on that plan the better prepared they would be. Director Weiss stated that 
recruitment and retention has been difficult for the department. She briefly discussed the 
linemen who have recently left and the one new hire.  
 
Director Gillingham stated that for the 2021 Utilities strategic plan funding she would ask that: 


• Utilities mirror all other City departments at 2%.  
• Those who were not in good standing in 2020 be adjusted according to the 


compensation policy.  
• HR work with the third party consultant (Springsted or other identified) to grade the 


positions descriptions and review compensation matrix.  
 


Director Weiss stated that she would be turning the process over to Director Gillingham to 
lead, with Personnel, Finance, the Utilities Board, and eventually Council to approve. She 
stated that the HR Dept. would handle recruitment. Director Weiss stated that the estimated 
cost of this plan should be approximately $290,000. She stated the consultant fees were just a 
best guess, as they had not been vetted. 
 
Reeves stated that while she gives this strategic plan her stamp of approval, she wondered 
though that with the position descriptions not being done at this point, if this should not be a 
Finance item as she is not sure of the role of Personnel in this. She stated she did not want to 
get into the financial and asked about guidance regarding the financial implications. 
Director Gillingham stated that at this time no decision has been made and that it would go 
through Personnel, Finance and Council. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated that the budget is different for Utilities, having different ebbs & flows. He 
further stated that at the Utilities meeting prior to this Personnel meeting, Director Friedl had 
demonstrated that well.  
 







Majewski stated that the $290,000 number was just a placeholder needed in order to start. It is 
a best estimate and I find that to be reasonable. Reeves noted that this is just first steps and 
there will be stopgaps and checks along the way. Majewski stated that it would need to 
come back to this committee before moving forward to council for approval. Boersma 
agreed with Majewski. He stated that he believes setting the strategic plan is good and we 
need to start somewhere. 
 Majewski motion to agree to have Stoughton Utilities set aside $290,000 for strategic planning 
with the understanding that this come back before this Committee before being taken to 
Council, second Boersma, Approved 4-0.  
 


4. Future Agenda Items 


• Parks & Recreation Structure 


• Work Rules – New Format 
 


5. Motion to adjourn Majewski, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. Meeting adjourned 7:45pm. 







Stoughton Utilities Proposed 
2021 Budget & 5-Year CIP







Stoughton Utilities Budget 


 Funding Source:  SU ratepayers and recipients of utility services 
(electric, water and wastewater)


 Budget uniquely different from city process – not a line-item 
budget, but instead trend-based


 Critical to maintain rates of returns & cash on hand
 Rates and service fees are highly regulated by the Public 


Service Commission







Stoughton Utilities Divisions 


Electric System Division
Technical Operations Division
Wastewater System Division
Water System Division 







2021 CIP – Division Key Items
 Electric


 Bi-annual Tree Trimming
 Maintenance / Rebuilds
 Dark Fiber Communications 


 Water
 Lead Service Line Replacement / DNR 


Grant Opportunity


 Wastewater
 Sewer Main Televising Camera System
 Collection System Maintenance –


Manhole Rehab and Pipe Lining 


 Technical Operations
 Gate Security Upgrades
 Parking Lot of Administration Building







Stoughton Utilities 5-Year CIP
Beyond 2021 


 Electric System Division: Distribution system maintenance & fleet management
 Technical Operations Division: Security upgrades & outage management system 


efforts
 Improve system automation, system health monitoring, and customer engagement


 Wastewater & Water System Divisions: 2021 is a “Planning Year”
 CIP / utility reconstruction projects are aligned with city reconstruction projects.  Current 


project schedule is not financially sustainable 


 Working with city staff to develop long-term plan for sustainable infrastructure improvements


 2022 – 2025 fund allocation is consistent with forecasting provided by City Finance Director.  
Specific project locations yet to be determined 







Strategic Alignment Plan 
Vison


 Responsible Resource Use
 Leverage Technological Opportunities 
 Enhance Customer Satisfaction / Customer Engagement
 Create Competitive Edge 
 Economic Responsibility
 Build & Retain Strong Committed Team 
 Efficiency 







Strategic Alignment Plan 


 Technology


 People


 Processes 







Strategic Alignment Plan 


People / Processes / Technology 
Vision 
Skill Sets / Job Descriptions
Succession Planning / Mentorship
Recruitment & Retention







Stoughton Utilities Vison


 2020 – Team of 24







 1991 – Team of 28
 1991 population 8,849
 City population has increased 32% while our staffing has decreased by 14%







2021 Funding 
Strategic Alignment Plan 


 Skill Sets / Job Descriptions
 Succession Planning & Mentorship
 Recruitment & Retention


Allocations by Division


Electric Water Wastewater


 Further committee and council approval must 
still occur before any funds are spent


 Final Phase of Strategic Alignment Plan Results 
in 22-24 member team







2021 Funding 
Strategic Alignment Plan 


 2% Cost of Living Wage Adjustment


 Good Standing Adjustment


 3rd Party Consultant Review (Working directly 
with HR) – Positions & Wages


 Succession Planning & Mentoring 


 Market Adjustments - Recruitment & Retention


26.6%


14.0%
38.5%


21.0%


2% & 2021 Good Standing
3rd Party Review
Mentored Hybrid Positions
Market Adjustments - Post Review







2021 Process & Timing 
Strategic Alignment Plan 


 Approved Through 2021 Budget Approval Process
 2% Wage Adjustment on January 1, 2021
 Good Standing Adjustment on January 1, 2021


 All future plan items require additional approvals







2021 Process & Timing 
Strategic Alignment Plan 


 Review of current position descriptions
 Director of Human Resources Review
 Utilities Committee Review
 Personnel Committee Review


 Selection of 3rd party consultant
 Lead by Director of Human Resources
 Personnel Committee Review


 3rd Party Position & Wage Review
 Utilities Committee Review
 Personnel Committee Review
 Finance Committee Review


 Recruitment
 Lead by Director of Human Resources







FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 


October 27, 2020 @ 6:00 PM 


GoToMeeting 


Present: 


Schumacher, Jenson, Doom, Reeves and Mayor Tim Swadley 


Others Present: 


Finance Director Friedl, Planning Director Scheel, City Clerk Licht, Joyce Tikalsky 


Call to Order: 


Brett Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 


Communications: 


None. 


Reports: the following reports were entered into the record.  


 Contingency Report 


 September 2020 Financial Report 


 September Treasurer’s Report 


 YTD October 15, 2020 CIP Report 
 


Approval of the October 13, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 


Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 


Resolution to amend all existing Senior Center Annex lease agreements to have the same termination 


date (September 30th) 


Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to recommend to council for approval. Motion carried 5-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding funding up to $20,000 from Contingency for legal representation for 


liquor license proceedings and authorizing the proper City Officials to hire Attorney Al Reuter 


Motion by Jenson, second by Doom to recommend to council for approval. Motion carried 5-0. 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into the First Amendment to the Access 
Agreement with Uniroyal Global Engineered Products 
Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to recommend to council for approval. Motion carried 5-0 


Resolution setting the special charge for garbage and recycling collection fees for calendar year 2021 
Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to recommend to council for approval. Motion carried 5-0 


Discussion and possible action to pursue a small claims lawsuit in an effort to collect amounts owed to 
the City in relation to an existing annexation agreement 
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to recommend to council for approval. Motion carried 5-0 


Discussion and possible action regarding treatment of future special assessments and potential 
Transportation Utility 
Staff recommends to not remove them altogether. Reeves and Doom agreed that it wouldn’t be fair for 


those already paid special assessments. Jenson said that the City should cover the entire project costs. 


Move to future agenda item. 







FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  


Senior Center Annex Lease Agreements 


Adjournment: 


Motion Reeves, second by Doom to adjourn at 6:59 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk  


 


 





		01-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 9-23-2020 BUDGET PERSONNEL REQUESTS

		2-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 09-23-2020

		Recreation Presentation

		Recreation 2021 Projects

		Public Works Presentation



		02-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 10-01-2020 BUDGET PERSONNEL REQUESTS CORRECTED

		03-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 10-19-2020 BUDGET PERSONNEL REQUESTS

		PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 10-19-2020 BUDGET PERSONNEL REQUESTS

		SU - Budget 2021 - Proposed

		Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2021 Budget & 5-Year CIP��	�

		Stoughton Utilities Budget 

		Stoughton Utilities Divisions 

		2021 CIP – Division Key Items

		Stoughton Utilities 5-Year CIP�Beyond 2021 

		Strategic Alignment Plan �Vison

		Strategic Alignment Plan 

		Strategic Alignment Plan 

		Stoughton Utilities Vison

		Slide Number 10

		2021 Funding �Strategic Alignment Plan 

		2021 Funding �Strategic Alignment Plan 

		2021 Process & Timing �Strategic Alignment Plan 

		2021 Process & Timing �Strategic Alignment Plan 





		04-10-27 Finance Minutes






Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, November 24, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open 


at 6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/794408309. You can also dial in 


using your phone: +1 (571) 317-3117 . Access Code: 794-408-309. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations: 


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 11 alders present. Hundt was absent and excused.  


Communications: 


 Mayor Swadley stated that the Jefferson St. bridge is now open. 


 The holiday decorations are up on Main St.  


 The Senior Center received an award for volunteer tax service.  


 Visitor Services 2021 Budget Presentation—Presented by Callie LaPointe 


Minutes and Reports: the minutes and reports were entered into the record.  


Public Comment Period: 


There were no comments from the public. 


Consent Agenda 


A. November 10, 2020 Council Minutes 


B. Stoughton Utilities October Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities September 


Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities 


Motion by Jenson, second by second by Hirsch to approve. Motion carried 11-0. 


OLD BUSINESS 


O-25-2020-Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating 


subsection (82) relating to No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between 


Otteson and Odegard Drives.  



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/794408309

tel:+15713173117,,794408309





Motion by Jenson, second by Doom to approve O-25-2020 Amending Chapter 70-176 of the 


City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (82) relating to No Parking Anytime 


on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson and Odegard Drives. Motion carried 11-0. 


NEW BUSINESS 


R-174-2020- A resolution approving the Summary Report of the Redevelopment Authority of 


the City of Stoughton (“RDA”) regarding the sale of the property located at 314 West Main 


Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin (commonly known as the Marathon site) (the Property”)  


Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve R-174-2020 A resolution approving the 


Summary Report of the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (“RDA”) regarding 


the sale of the property located at 314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin (commonly 


known as the Marathon site) (the Property”). Motion carried 11-0. 


R- 175-2020- Approving a Connecting Highway Designation agreement between the Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation (DOT) and the City of Stoughton for costs for the maintenance of 


USH 51 from Hoel Avenue to Roby Road 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-175-2020 Approving a Connecting 


Highway Designation agreement between the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) 


and the City of Stoughton for costs for the maintenance of USH 51 from Hoel Avenue to Roby 


Road. Motion carried 11-0. 


R- 176-2020-Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to approve the Police 


Department 2021-2022 Union Contract  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-176-2020 Authorizing and directing the 


proper City official (s) to approve the Police Department 2021-2022 Union Contract. Motion 


carried 11-0. 


O-26-2020- An ordinance repealing Zoning Code Section 78-205(12) and all ordinance 


references to a group development within the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances  


Caravello read O-26-2020 for the first reading. It will be back before the council on December 8, 


2020.  


R-177-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to appoint Jake Dillon as the 


agent for Kwik Trip Inc., d/b/a Kwik Trip #967, located at 2400 Roby Rd 


Motion by Jenson, second by Hirsch to approve R-177-2020 Authorizing and directing the 


proper city official(s) to appoint Jake Dillon as the agent for Kwik Trip Inc., d/b/a Kwik Trip 


#967, located at 2400 Roby Rd.  Motion carried 11-0. 


R-178-2020- Ordering a Special Election for Aldermanic District 1 


Motion by Heili, second by Ligocki to approve r-178-2020. Motion carried 10-0 with Tikalsky 


abstaining.  


 







Adjournment:  


Motion by Tikalsky, second by Heili to adjourn at 7:50 p.m. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk  


 








 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Madelyn Tibbetts    Deaks Pub & Grill 


  Annette Budd     Citgo (Food Pantry) 


  Nicholas Manhart  


  Jordyn Phillips 


          


    


 


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-181-2020 


 
Date Introduced:   December 8, 2020 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An ordinance repealing Zoning Code Section 78-205(12) and all ordinance references to a group 


development within the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances 


Committee 


Action:    


Plan Commission recommends approval 7 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-26- 2020 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


November 24, 2020  


December 8, 2020 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do repeal the following: 


 


Sec. 78-205(12) – Group Developments.  A group development is any development 


containing:  


(a)  Two or more structures containing principal land uses on the same lot;  


(b)  Any single structure on a single lot which contains five or more dwelling units or 


two or more non-residential uses; and/or,  


(c)  Any new institutional, commercial, and office buildings in excess of 5,000 gross 


square feet and to all multi-building group developments in which the combined 


total of all structures on a site, regardless of diverse ownership, use or tenancy, 


combine to exceed 5,000 square feet.  


(d)  Any building additions to institutional, commercial, and office buildings that bring 


the total building size to over 5,000 gross square feet. These regulations shall apply 


to the building addition, the older portions of the building constructed prior to the 


adoption of this section, and to the site.  


(e)  Common examples of group developments include six-unit apartment buildings, 


apartment complexes, condominium complexes, strip centers, shopping centers, and 


office centers. (One tenant office or commercial buildings containing less than 


5,000 square feet of gross floor area, four-unit apartment buildings, and other land 


uses in which each non-residential building contains only one tenant, or where the 


lot contains only one structure, or where each residential building contains four or 


fewer dwelling units, are not group developments even though such developments 


may contain parcels under common ownership.)  


A group development does not offer the ability to customize the regulations of this 


zoning ordinance as could be achieved using a planned development per subsection 


78-105(7). A group development approval is not required for an approved specific 


implementation plan.  


Any land use that is permitted as a Permitted by Right land use or as a Conditional 


land use within the applicable zoning district(s) is permitted to locate within a group 


development. The detailed land use regulations of this subsection that pertain to 


individual land uses shall also apply to individual land uses within a Group 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIESZODI_S78-105PUINSTZODI

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIESZODI_S78-105PUINSTZODI





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


 


Development, as will all other applicable provisions of this chapter. Therefore, land 


uses permitted by right in the Zoning District shall be permitted by right within an 


approved group development (unless otherwise restricted by the conditions of 


approval imposed during the conditional use approval for the group development as 


a whole), and land uses permitted as a conditional use in the Zoning District shall be 


permitted within the group development only with conditional use approval for the 


specific use. In all cases, the following conditional use conditions shall be applied to 


the group development as a whole, and to individual uses within the group 


development:  


1.  The development shall contain a sufficient number of waste bins to 


accommodate all trash and waste generated by the land uses in a convenient 


manner.  


2.  All development located within a group development shall be located so as to 


comply with the intent of this chapter regarding setbacks of structures and 


buildings from lot lines. As such, individual principal and accessory structures 


and buildings located within group developments shall be situated within 


building envelopes that serve to demonstrate complete compliance with said 


intent. Said building envelopes shall be depicted on the site plan required for 


review of group developments. The use of this approach to designing group 


developments will also ensure the facilitation of subdividing group 


developments in the future, (if such action is so desired).  


3.  The entire development shall provide for full and safe pedestrian and bicycle 


access within the development, and shall provide appropriate connections to 


the existing and planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities in the community 


and in surrounding neighborhoods, including sidewalk connections to all 


building entrances from all public streets. The development shall provide 


secure bicycle parking and pedestrian furniture in appropriate quantities and 


location. A central pedestrian gathering area shall be provided.  


(1312)  Division or combining of a lot. No recorded lot shall be divided into two or more lots, 


and no two or more recorded lots shall be combined into one or more lots, unless such 


division or combination results in the creation of lots, each of which conforms to all of 


the applicable regulations of the zoning district in which said lot is located (as set 


forth in this chapter). (See also the City of Stoughton Land Division Ordinance.)  


  


78-205(9) Number of buildings per lot: In the RH, SR-3, SR-4, SR-5 and SR-6 Districts, only 


one principal building shall be permitted on any one lot. In the TR-6, MR-10, MR-24, NO, PO, 


NB, PB, CB, PI, GI, HI and I Districts, more than one principal building shall be permitted on 


any one lot upon the granting of a conditional use permit for a large development in compliance 


with subsection 78-205(11) or a group development in compliance with subsection 78-205(12). 


78-206(1)(a)1  Single-family detached. Description: A dwelling designed for and occupied by 


not more than one family and having no roof, wall, or floor in common with any other 


dwelling unit. This dwelling unit type consists of a fully detached single-family residence 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


which is located on an individual lot or within a group or large development. The dwelling unit 


must be a site built structure built in compliance with the State of Wisconsin Uniform 


Dwelling Code (UDC), or may be a manufactured dwelling (modular home) as permitted by 


the UDC or a manufactured home as permitted by the HUD code. For any of these dwelling 


units, the use of a permanent, continuous UDC foundation is required. This dwelling unit type 


may not be split into two or more residences. Refer to the illustration below and to article I for 


setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


78-206(1)(a)3  Twin-house. Description: These dwelling unit types consist of a single-family 


dwelling which is attached on one side to another single-family residence. A minimum 


building code required fire rated wall assembly division, separating living areas from the 


lowest level to flush against the underside of the roof is required between each dwelling unit. 


Upon the effective date of this ordinance amendment, all newly constructed twin homes are 


required to have a sanitary sewer lateral to the sanitary main and a public water lateral from the 


water main, for each individual dwelling unit. Separate water and sewer laterals, to the 


respective mains, are required when converting an existing duplex to a twin home or when 


building a new twin home. The two residences are located on separate lots. The twin house is 


distinguished from the duplex house merely by having each unit located on an individual lot or 


within a group or large development. These dwelling unit types may not be split into additional 


residences. A mutual maintenance agreement is recommended to be drafted and recorded 


between property owners to address for example; repair and/or replacement of the exterior 


components of the structure. Refer to the illustration on the following page and to Article I for 


setback requirements labeled in capital letters: 


78-206(1)(a)4  Two-flat house. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of a single-family 


residence, which is in complete compliance with the State of Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling 


Code (UDC), which has been converted into a two-family residence. The two residences are 


both located on the same lot or within the same group or large development. This dwelling unit 


type may not be split into additional residences. Where permitted, this use is a conditional use 


and must be approved through the procedures of section 78-905. Refer to the illustration below 


and to article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


78-206(1)(a)5  Townhouse. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of attached, two-


story, single-family residences, each having a private, individual access. This dwelling unit 


type is located on its own lot or within a group or large development and may not be split into 


additional residences. A minimum building code required fire rated wall assembly division, 


separating living areas from the lowest level through the roof, and individual sanitary sewer 


and public water laterals, are required between each dwelling unit. No more than six and no 


less than three townhouse dwelling units may be attached per group. All townhouse units 


within a development shall be located a minimum of 30 feet from the boundary of the 


development. Refer to the illustration below and to article I for setback requirements labeled in 


capital letters:  


78-206(1)(a)7  Apartment. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of an attached, multi-


family residence which takes access from a shared entrance or hallway. A minimum building 


code required fire rated wall assembly division, separating living areas from the lowest level to 


the underside of the roof, is required between each dwelling unit. No less than three dwelling 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-905COUSREAPPR





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


 


units may be located in a building. As part of the conditional use requirements for group 


developments, any development comprised of one or more buildings which contain four or 


more dwelling units shall provide additional site design features such as: underground parking, 


architectural elements, landscaping, and/or on-site recreational facilities. Refer to the 


illustration below and to article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters: 


78-206(1)(a)8  Mobile home. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of a fully detached, single-


family residence, which has not received a Federal Manufactured Housing Certificate and which is 


located on an individual lot or within a group or large development. This dwelling unit type may not be 


split into two or more residences. Within 30 days of occupancy, the owner shall remove the axle and 


install skirting per the requirements of the plan commission. Refer to the illustration below and to 


article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


78-105(2)(a)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(b)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(c)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(d)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(e)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(f)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(g)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(h)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(3)(a)3b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(3)(b)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(4)(a)3b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(4)(b)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(4)(a)3b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


66-303(3)f  Location and approximate dimensions of any sites that are to be used for group 


developments or planned unit developments as defined in subsections 78-205 (11) and 78-105 


(7) of the city zoning ordinance, respectively. 


78-015 - Definitions. 


Building envelope: A component of a large or group development which conforms to the lot 


lines of developments which are not group or large developments, in that required minimum 


setback distances are measured from the building envelope line. (Refer to subsections 78-


205(11) or (12)) 


 


Group development: See subsection 78-205(12). 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIESZODI_S78-105PUINSTZODI

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


Shopping center: See group development or large development. 


 


78-914(8)(a)4a  A SIP site plan conforming to all the requirements of subsection 78-908(3). If 


the proposed Planned Development is a cluster development (per subsections 78-206(1)(b) 


through (f)), a large development (per subsection 78-205(11)), or a group development (per 


subsection 78-205(12)), a proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat may be required by the 


zoning administrator in addition to the required site plan. 


 


78-914(8)(a)7  A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs, 


concepts for public fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign 


faces and/or poles), and group development signage themes which are proposed to vary from city 


standards or common practices. 


 


78-704(6)(i)  Parking lot design standards. Horizontal widths for parking rows, aisles, and 


modules shall be provided at widths no less than listed in Table 78-704(6)(j), and shown on the 


following page. Additional design standards apply to "Large Developments (See section 78-


205(11)) and “Group developments." (See section 78-205(12)) 


 


78-905(4)(d)  A site plan of the subject property as proposed for development. Said site plan 


shall conform to any and all the requirements of subsection 78-908(3). If the proposed 


conditional use is a large development (per subsection 78-205(11)) or a group development (per 


subsection 78-205(12)), a proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat may be substituted for the 


required site plan, provided said plat contains all information required on said site plan per 


section 78-908; 


 


 


 


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


       Holly Licht, City Clerk 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-206DELAUSDERE

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTVIIPEST_S78-704OREPATRCIST

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR





T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\110920\Plan Info\Group Development Memo-rjs.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
Date:  October 26, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council  
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the November 9, 2020 Plan Commission Meeting and Common 


Council Meetings of November 24 and December 8, 2020 
 
Proposed zoning ordinance amendment to repeal section 78-205(12) and all references to 
group developments. 
 
The group development section focuses on evaluating only three aspects of certain projects.  These 
generally include:  


• Waste bins to accommodate trash 
• Evaluation of building position on the site to accommodate possible lot division in 


the future 
• Pedestrian and bicycle accommodations  


 
These items are routinely part of the evaluation of any site plan; most of which are further evaluated 
as part of a Conditional Use Permit or Planned Development process.  The group development 
references are confusing and cumbersome to only focus on three primary items that are able to be 
evaluated through other aspects of review. 
 
We recommend removal of this section of code and associated references.   



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Amend - Group Developments.doc 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday, November 9, 2020 at 
6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider proposed ordinance amendments to 
the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinance sections relative to group developments.  This proposal is 
to repeal section 78-205(12) and all references to group developments within the City of Stoughton code of 
ordinances, Dane County, Wisconsin.   
 
Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, this meeting will not be open to the public in an in-person capacity. For those 
wishing to view the meeting and/or ask questions, you may do so via the following options: 
 


Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/795356605  


You can also dial in using your phone.  
(For supported devices, tap a one-touch number below to join instantly.)  


United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679  
- One-touch: tel:+18668994679,,795356605#  


United States: +1 (571) 317-3116  
- One-touch: tel:+15713173116,,795356605#  


Access Code: 795-356-605  


 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/795356605 
 
If you wish to speak at or have your comments read aloud at the meeting, please register at 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on the day of the meeting. The Clerk will the receive comments and 
forward them on to the “Organizer”. The public can click on the link or call in and use the access code. When 
connected the public will have to identify themselves in order for the “Organizer” to rename them on the 
“Attendee” screen. If you plan to speak, please mute TV or stream volume (if online) and do not use 
speakerphone, as it creates feedback, there may be a delay. The Public Comment participant will be unmuted by 
the “Organizer” when it is their turn and have up to 3 minutes to speak. After speaking, the “Organizer” will 
mute the Public Comment participant. The participant can log out or hang up and stream at WSTO, or watch on 
Channel 981 on Charter/Spectrum. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-0421 
 
Published October 22 and October 29, 2020 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  11-9-20.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; Tom 
Selsor; Tom Majewski and Brett Schumacher 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development 
Press: None 
Guests: Phil Harrison 
 
1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of October 12, 2020. 


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the Common Council approved the following:  
 


O-19-2020 – Amending the Zoning Classification at 1114 and 1115 Abel Court 
O-20-2020 – Amending Zoning Code 78-707 and 78-704 regarding exterior lighting 


 
4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet of 
materials.  There were no questions. 
 


5. Request by Vik Malling to amend zoning ordinance section 78-722(7) Swimming Pool 
Standards.  (postponed from September 12, 2020) 
Mr. Malling contacted the City and reported he couldn’t participate tonight.   
 
Barman reported his understanding of our existing ordinances regarding fencing for pools: the 
fence is high enough (5 ft) so you don’t have inadvertent accidents and far enough from the edge (4 
ft) to prevent someone from jumping over the fence into the pool.  He also stressed the “self-
closing, self-latching” requirement is important to him.  He suggested that the ordinance as 
proposed section 6 conflicts with section 7.  He suggests we should clean up this section and has 
offered some suggested language to be considered. 
 
Motion by Barman to postpone action until December to allow Mr. Malling to participate and to 
have staff incorporate Commissioner Barman’s suggested language into the draft ordinance, 2nd by 
Robinson.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 
6. Proposed zoning ordinance amendment to repeal section 78-205(12) and all references to 


group developments. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
11/9/20 
Page 2 of 3 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  11-9-20.docx 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment as 
presented, 2nd by Schumacher.   
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


7. Request by Phil Harrison to discuss the regulations for flags and banners used for 
commercial signage. 
Phil Harrison explained that they are 2 year residents of Stoughton.  They had observed “feather 
flags” elsewhere and thought they could be put up without a permit. 
 
Commissioner Barman indicated as a local business owner he had previously inquired about 
“feather flags” for his own business and found they were not allowed.  He stated it is a difficult 
time to invest in permanent signage. 
 
Selsor suggested that Barman should recuse himself from voting on this item. 
 
It was suggested that “sandwich board” type signs are better suited for pedestrian traffic vs. 
vehicular traffic. 
 
Caravello suggested he may be willing to consider 1 feather flag per business with the message 
“Open”. 
 
There was discussion about possibly allowing one wave banner per lot to be used only when the 
business is open.   
 
Barman suggested maybe considering one for each building per street frontage so a corner building 
would be allowed one on each street. 
 
Majewski is concerned about the density of feather flags and suggested maybe one per lot in the 
downtown area.  They should not be allowed in the right of way except in the downtown district. 
 
The Commissioners would like staff to draft language for them to consider at the next meeting.  
They suggested we may need to include the City Attorney into the discussion. 
 
No motions were made. 


 
8. Discuss potential zoning code amendments to allow mobile food vending on private property. 


Majewski is ok with 180 days but indicated 90 days may be better.  Schumacher indicated support 
for 90 to 180 days. 
 
Barman indicated Portland, OR has a system where they review mobile vending as part of a site 
plan.  Mobile vending has been incorporated into strategies to encourage business activity in 
communities.  
 



mstacey

Highlight





		09a-Group Developments 78-205(12)

		09b-Zoning Ord Repeal - Group Developments

		ADP1591.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, November 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting










T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\12-08-2020\06a-R-2020 Agreement for Abel Plat 2020.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


Approving Agreement to Undertake Development in the Plat of Abel Plat 


 
Committee Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R-179-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
December 8, 2020 


 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


RECITALS 


 


Developer has requested authorization to develop the lands within the plat of Abel Plat, (the “Plat”) 


located in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.   


 


The City’s purposes in entering into this Agreement are, among others, to provide for the installation 


of required improvements, to require the Developer to pay the direct and indirect costs related to the 


required improvements, and to avoid the harmful effects of substandard subdivisions. 


 


RESOLUTION 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the Agreement to Undertake 


Development in the Plat of Abel Plat and the proper city official(s) be hereby directed and 


authorized to enter into the Agreement. 


 


 
 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


 


            


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  November 18, 2020 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Abel Plat Development Agreement 
 
The Abel Plat was created in 1990.  The public improvements have not been installed.  Habitat 
for Humanity of Dane County is now working to make the public improvements to prepare the 
lots for development.  The Agreement to Undertake Development has been prepared to outline 
the requirements related to the public improvements. 
 
We recommend approving the Agreement to Undertake Development and authorizing the Mayor 
to sign. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance 8-31-2020 Uniroyal Request to Test on City Property.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





1120201411 


AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT 
IN THE PLAT OF ABEL PLAT 


 
 
 


Agreement entered into this  _______ day of_______________, 2020, by and 
between Habitat for Humanity of Dane County, Inc. (“Developer”), and the City of 
Stoughton, (the “City”), a Wisconsin municipal corporation. 
 


RECITALS 
 
1. Developer has requested authorization to develop the lands within the plat of Abel 


Plat, (the “Plat”) located in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.   
 
2. The City’s purposes in entering into this Agreement are, among others, to provide 


for the installation of required improvements, to require the Developer to pay the 
direct and indirect costs related to the required improvements, and to avoid the 
harmful effects of substandard subdivisions. 


 
AGREEMENT 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 


sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Developer and the City agree as follows: 
ARTICLE I - REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS 


 
1. General Conditions. 
 


A. Improvements.  Developer shall construct and install all improvements 
needed to serve the Plat.  The Developer’s obligation to complete the 
improvements will arise upon execution of this Agreement, will be 
independent of any obligations of the City contained herein and will not be 
conditioned on the commencement of construction in the development or 
sale of any lots or improvements within the development.   


 
The improvements contemplated herein include the following:  Sanitary 
sewer service mains, manholes, laterals and all appurtenances; water mains, 
laterals, hydrants, valves and all appurtenances; storm sewer and storm water 
management facilities; public streets; gas and electric utilities; cable 
television; trees; telephone service; sidewalks; street signs; and street lamps 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Improvements”) in accordance with plans and 
specifications to be approved by the City Planning Director.  In addition, the 
Developer further agrees to construct improvements required to connect the 
subdivision to existing public improvements, facilities or utilities, including 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 2 


any improvements required outside the boundaries of the Plat, and to 
dedicate said Improvements to the City. 


 
The Improvements shall be designed, constructed and installed by the 
Developer at the Developer’s sole expense.  All required improvements shall 
be designed, constructed and installed in accordance with the plans and 
specifications to be prepared by the Developer’s Engineer and approved by 
the City Planning Director.  Two copies of the approved, signed and stamped 
plans and specifications shall be provided to the City Planning Director, and 
one copy shall be provided to each contractor.  Only stamped and signed 
copies of the plans and specifications shall be used on the job site.  Where 
standards and/or specifications have not been established by the City, all 
work shall be made in accordance with established engineering practices as 
designated and approved by the City Planning Director. 


 
The City shall, to the extent it already owns or has access easements over 
offsite lands, permit reasonable access for Developer’s construction of offsite 
improvements required under this Agreement, in accordance with the terms 
and limitations of such easement.  The City shall not, however, be required 
to exercise, for the benefit of Developer, its power of eminent domain or 
exercise any other municipal authority to obtain access over any property 
which it does not currently own or over which it does not have access rights.  
Nor shall the City be required to expend any time or money to stake, for 
Developer’s benefit, the location of any dedicated lands or easements over 
which it will furnish Developer access for construction of offsite 
improvements.   


 
B. City Approval of Starting Dates.  No land disturbances or work shall begin 


without the City Planning Director’s approval of a starting date and schedule, 
which shall be submitted by the Developer to the City Planning Director a 
minimum of seven calendar days before work, is scheduled to begin.  A 
starting date will not be approved until the surety required by this Agreement 
has been furnished to and approved by the City. 


 
C. Change to Work Order.  The City shall not be responsible for any costs or 


changes relating to this project except those specifically enumerated and 
agreed upon in this or subsequent written, signed agreements between the 
Developer and the City.   


 
D. Contractors Engaged by Developer.  The Developer agrees to engage 


contractors for all construction included in this Agreement who are 
acceptable to the City, who shall perform such work to the standards of the 
City, and who shall comply with every requirement of the City ordinances 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 3 


and standards in performing such work.  The Developer shall furnish the City 
Planning Director with the names of all contractors and their subcontractors, 
with the classification of work they will perform, not less than seven calendar 
days prior to any work beginning. 


 
E. Time of Completion.  All work specified herein, excepting the final asphalt 


lift, shall be completed within twelve months after the execution of this 
Agreement.  The final asphalt lift shall be completed within 24 months after 
the execution of this Agreement.  No damages may be recovered by 
Developer or any person against the City for delay in completion of the 
improvements. 


 
2. Specifications for Improvements. 
 


A. Signs and Barricades.  The Developer shall install and maintain during 
construction and until the Improvements are accepted by the City all 
barricades and signs as specified by the City Planning Director at all points 
where new rights-of-way extend to or intersect with existing streets and all 
street ends. 


 
B. Grading.  Before starting grading, excavating or other land disturbing 


activities, the Developer shall obtain approval of a site grading and drainage 
plan, and shall obtain all necessary grading permits pursuant to the City 
Code.  Developer shall perform all grading as specified in the plans approved 
by the City Planning Director.  


 
C. Erosion Control.  The Developer shall obtain an erosion control permit 


pursuant to the City Code, and shall design, install and construct all erosion 
control measures as required by the City’s ordinances, and in accordance 
with plans and specifications approved by the City Planning Director, before 
grading, utility installation or any other land disturbing activity. 


 
D. Street Improvements. The Developer shall design, construct and install 


standard street improvements, including grading, and bituminous base and 
surface course on all streets and in accordance with plans and specifications 
approved by the City Planning Director.  The City Planning Director shall 
retain final authority regarding the need to remove bad subbase material and 
to replace such bad subbase material with breaker run, in order to insure the 
quality of the street construction.  Construction of pavement, curb and gutter, 
aprons shall not occur at any time when the outside temperature at the site is 
forecast by the National Weather Service to be below 30 degrees farenheit 
during and for 24 hours following installation.  The surface course of asphalt 
shall be installed during the same construction season as the installation of 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 4 


the base course of asphalt, and in no event later than November 15 of the 
year in which the base course is installed, unless later installation is approved 
by the City Planning Director.  The City shall have no responsibility to 
accept, plow or otherwise maintain any street that has not been fully 
completed, including the finals asphalt. Lift.  Developer shall be responsible 
for snow removal from streets until such streets are fully completed.   


 
E. Sidewalks. The Developer shall construct and install sidewalks on both sides 


of the street within the Plat in accordance with the standard specifications of 
the City.  The Developer shall construct and install sidewalk ramps and 
detectable warning fields at the ends of the sidewalks at crosswalk locations.  
Construction of sidewalks shall not occur at any time when the outside 
temperature at the site is forecast by the National Weather Service to be 
below 30 degrees farenheit during and for 24 hours following installation.   


 
F. Street signs.  The Developer shall pay for the installation of all traffic control 


signs and street name signs in accordance with City specifications as 
determined by the City Planning Director. 


 
G. Street Lamps. The Developer shall pay to Stoughton Utilities the actual cost 


of purchasing and installing streetlamps in accordance with a plan to be 
approved by the Stoughton Utilities Director.  Prior to the approval of a start 
date for construction, Developer shall provide a deposit to Stoughton Utilities 
in the amount of the estimated cost of purchasing and installing streetlamps 
in such phase, as such amount is estimated by the Utilities Director for 
Stoughton Utilities.  Stoughton Utilities may directly apply such deposit to 
the cost of purchasing and installing streetlamps.  If any amount of the actual 
cost of purchasing and installing streetlamps exceeds the deposit, Developer 
shall pay the additional cost to Stoughton Utilities.  If the actual cost of 
purchasing and installing streetlamps is less than the deposit, the unused 
portion of the deposit shall be returned to Developer.   


 
H. Sanitary Sewer Mains.  The Developer shall design, construct and install all 


public sanitary sewer mains and laterals (complete with appurtenances 
thereto), necessary to serve the Plat from the existing City sanitary sewer 
facilities, and in accordance with plans and specifications and requirements 
of the City, as approved by the City Planning Director.  No installation of the 
underground utilities shall commence until plans and specifications have 
been approved by the City Planning Director and the Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources as it requires.   


 
I. Water Mains and Service Pipes.  The Developer shall design, construct and 


install all water mains, including pipe, hydrants, tees, valves, crosses and 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 5 


related appurtenances and water service laterals to serve the Plat from 
existing City water facilities, and as required by the plans, specifications, and 
requirements of the City, as approved by the City Planning Director.  All 
materials used shall conform to the City’s specifications for water mains.   


 
J. Storm Sewer and Stormwater Management Facilities.  The Developer shall 


obtain a stormwater management permit pursuant to the City Code, and shall 
design, construct and install storm sewer and stormwater management 
facilities to be dedicated to the City and to serve the Plat, as required by the 
City’s ordinances and the stormwater management plan and permit. 


 
K. Easements and Utility Service.  The Developer shall install or cause to be 


installed electric, gas, cable television lines, and telephone lines, including 
necessary appurtenances thereto, in order to serve the Plat.  All new utility 
service lines shall be installed underground.  


 
L. Fencing and Debris Removal.  The Developer shall remove all fences and 


posts on the property, and shall remove all debris on lands to be dedicated to 
the public by the Plat, or which are public at this time. 


 
M. Excess Fill Materials.  If excavations result in excess fill, and the Developer 


uses such fill materials on lots within the subdivision, the Developer shall be 
solely responsible for the location and method of placement of such material.  
Although such fill materials shall be leveled and graded to the specifications 
of the City Planning Director, neither the City, the City Planning Director, 
nor the employees or agents of either, shall be responsible for the location, 
method of placement, type, or degree of compaction of any materials placed 
on private property.   


 
N. Survey Monuments.  The Developer shall install all survey monuments for 


the lands within the Plat in the manner required by law within the time 
required by law.  


 
O. Terrace Trees.  The Developer shall install or pay a fee to fund the 


installation of terrace trees. The number of required trees shall be determined 
using the methodology in section 10-2(5) of the City of Stoughton Municipal 
Code. If the Developer elects to install the required terrace trees, such 
installation shall be done in accordance with a tree planting plan approved 
by the public works director or their designee. The tree planting plan shall 
specify the number, species and location of required trees. If the Developer 
elects to pay a fee to fund the installation of terrace trees, the fee shall be 
calculated using the methodology in section 10-2(6) of the City of Stoughton 
Municipal Code. 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 6 


 
ARTICLE II - PAYMENT OF FEES AND COSTS 


 
1. Fees.  The Developer shall pay the City for all outstanding fees, costs and 


assessments levied against lands within the Plat, including any outstanding costs for 
engineering, legal or other consulting services, at or before the time this Agreement 
is executed.  


 
2. Developer to Reimburse City Costs.  The Developer shall reimburse the City for 


the City’s actual cost of design, inspection, testing, and construction and associated 
legal, engineering and other fees relating to the Plat, this Agreement or the 
Improvements.  The City’s costs shall be determined as follows: 


 
A. The actual cost of the City’s consulting, inspection, engineering and legal 


fees at the invoiced amount, incurred by the City for purposes of the 
preparation, review, construction, inspection and testing of the Plat, this 
Agreement, the proposed development and the Improvements. 


 
B. The total cost of City employees’ time engaged in any way with the 


Improvements based on the hourly rate paid to the employee, plus 20 percent 
of those costs representing the City's cost for expenses, benefits, insurance, 
sick leave, holidays, overtime, vacation and similar benefits. 


 
C. The cost of City equipment employed. 


 
D. The cost of mileage reimbursed to City employees that is attributed to the 


Plat. 
 


E. The actual costs of City materials incorporated into the work including 
transportation costs plus a restocking and/or handling fee not to exceed 10 
percent of the cost of the materials. 


 
F. The costs incurred by the City in connection with the review and approval of 


construction plans and other documents relating to the development of the 
lands within the Plat, including but not limited to erosion control, grading 
and stormwater management plans and permits. 


 
3. Required Permits.  The Developer is responsible for obtaining all licenses, permits 


and authority necessary to perform its obligations under this agreement. 
 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 7 


ARTICLE III - ACCEPTANCE AND GUARANTEE OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 
1. Acceptance.  After the required Improvements have been installed and completed, 


and within 21 days after receiving written notice that the Developer desires the City 
to inspect such Improvements, the City Planning Director or his designee shall 
inspect the Improvements and, if acceptable to the City Planning Director, the City 
Council shall by resolution certify such Improvements as being in compliance with 
the standards and specifications of the City.  Before obtaining certification of any 
such Improvements, the Developer shall: (1) present to the City valid lien waivers 
from all persons providing materials or performing work on the Improvements for 
which certification is sought; (2) provide as built drawings to the City Planning 
Director consisting of four hard copies on paper; (3) provide to the City all 
information regarding such Improvements that the City requests to comply with 
GASB 34.  Certification by the City Planning Director does not constitute a waiver 
by the City of the right to draw funds under a letter of credit or invoke its rights 
under a performance bond because of defects in or failure of any Improvements that 
are detected or which occur following such certification.  
 
The Developer agrees that the required public Improvements will not be accepted 
by the City until they have been inspected and approved by the City Planning 
Director and furthermore until all outstanding City costs, including engineering and 
inspection charges, have been paid in full and affidavits and lien waivers are 
received by the City indicating that the contractors and their suppliers have been 
paid in full for all work and materials furnished under this Agreement.  The sanitary 
sewer and water main and the respective service laterals shall not be accepted until 
a complete breakdown of all construction, engineering and administrative costs 
incurred by the Developer is submitted to the City Planning Director.  In addition, 
the water system installation shall not be accepted until a bacteriologically safe 
sample is obtained and tested by a certified agency.  The Developer shall be 
responsible to flush the main, obtain the samples, and have all tests completed as 
may be required for the City’s acceptance, under the direct supervision of the City's 
water utility personnel.  In addition, the Developer shall clean the sanitary sewers 
in accordance with the directives of the City Planning Director.  Upon completion 
of the mains, hydrants, valves, appurtenances, and service laterals and acceptance 
of the system by the City, ownership and control of the system shall be turned over 
without any restrictions to the City.  
 
 
The Developer agrees to provide for maintenance and repair of all required public 
Improvements until such Improvements are formally accepted by the City.   


 
The City will provide timely notice to the Developer whenever inspection reveals 
that an improvement does not conform to the required standards and specifications 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 8 


or is otherwise defective.  The Developer shall have 30 days from the issuance of 
such notice to cure the defect.  The City shall not declare a default under this 
Agreement during the 30 day cure period on account of any such defect unless it is 
clear that the Developer does not intend to cure the defect, or unless the City 
determines that immediate action is required in order to remedy a situation which 
poses an imminent health or safety threat.   
 


2. Guarantee.  The Developer agrees to guarantee and warrant all work performed 
under this Agreement for a period of one year from the date of final acceptance by 
the City of the last improvement completed by the Developer under this Agreement 
against defects in workmanship or materials; provided, however, that such one year 
guarantee period shall commence upon the date of final acceptance by the City of 
the last such public Improvements completed by the Developer under this 
Agreement.  If the Improvements are accepted between November 15 and April 15, 
both dates inclusive, the guarantee period shall extend to June 15 following that date 
which is one year from the date the Improvements are accepted by the City.  If any 
defect appears during the guarantee period, the Developer agrees to make required 
replacement or acceptable repairs of the defective work at its own expense, 
including total and complete restoration of any disturbed surface or component of 
the Improvements on lands where the repairs or replacement is required, to the 
standard provided in the approved plans and specifications. 


 
All guarantees or warranties for materials or workmanship that extend beyond the 
above guarantee period shall be assigned by the Developer to the City. 


 
ARTICLE IV - SURETY 


 
1. Surety.  Before a starting date will be approved, the Developer shall provide the 


City with a letter of credit or performance bond in the amount of 120 percent of the 
estimated cost of constructing the public improvements pursuant to this Agreement.  
If a letter of credit is provided, it shall have an initial term of not less than 12 months.  
Any letter of credit or performance bond shall acceptable to the City Attorney, in 
both form and substance. 


 
2. Letter of Credit Procedures. 
 


A. Payment under Letters of Credit.  A letter of credit shall be payable to the 
City at any time upon presentation of (1) a sight draft drawn on the issuing 
Bank in the amount to which the City is entitled to draw pursuant to the terms 
of this Agreement; (2) an affidavit executed by an authorized City official 
stating that the Developer is in default under this Agreement; and (3) the 
original Letter of Credit.  


 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 9 


B. Reduction of Letters of Credit.  As work progresses on installation of the 
Improvements, the City Planning Director, upon written request from the 
Developer from time to time, is authorized to recommend a reduction in the 
amount of the letter of credit as hereinafter provided.  When portions of the 
Improvements are completed by the Developer, and determined acceptable 
by the City Planning Director, the City Administrator is authorized to reduce 
the amount of the required Letter of Credit after receiving:  (1) copies of pay 
requests approved by the Developer’s Planning Director; (2) a statement 
from the Developer’s Planning Director certifying the estimated cost of the 
total amount of work remaining to complete the Improvements, including all 
approved or anticipated change orders; and, (3) partial lien waivers from the 
general contractor, subcontractors and material suppliers for the total amount 
paid to date.  The amount of the reduced letter of credit shall be not less than 
the estimated cost of the total work remaining to complete the Improvements, 
including approved and anticipated change orders, plus 10 percent of the cost 
of the completed improvements, and including the cleaning of stormwater 
management measures prior to acceptance of such measures, as certified by 
the Developer’s Planning Director, and approved by the City Planning 
Director. 


 
C. Reduction after Acceptance.  Upon acceptance by the City Council of all 


Improvements, the City agrees to reduce the surety to 10 percent of the total 
cost of the Improvements.  The City shall return any remaining letter of credit 
to Developer or the institution that provided the letter of credit after 
Developer’s guarantee obligations under Article III, Section 2 if this 
Agreement have been satisfied. 


 
D. Accounting.  The Developer may inspect the City records of payments made 


using a letter of credit upon request at reasonable times.  However, the City 
retains the exclusive right to determine, among other things, questions of 
design, specifications, construction cost, performance, contract compliance, 
and payment in connection with this work.  The Developer agrees that in the 
absence of fraud on the part of the City, the City’s decisions on all such 
matters shall control and shall be final. 


 
E. Insufficient Letter of Credit Amount.  If the amount provided by a letter of 


credit is not sufficient to secure the Developer’s performance of this 
Agreement, then the City shall notify the Developer of the necessary increase 
in the letter of credit, or the additional amounts due, and the Developer agrees 
to increase the Letter of Credit or pay the City for such additional costs within 
30 days of receipt of notification. 


 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 10 


F. Notice of Expiration.  Developer agrees to provide written notice of the 
expiration of any letter of credit or replacement letter of credit provided for 
herein not less than 60 days before its expiration by sending written notice to 
the City.  The Letter of Credit shall be renewed at least 30 days before its 
expiration date, or any renewal date, until the completion of the guarantee 
period specified in Article III, Section 2. 


 
ARTICLE V- MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 


 
1. Inspections.  The Developer grants the right of entry on the lands within the Plat to 


personnel or agents of the City to conduct inspections and monitor compliance with 
the provisions of this Agreement. 


 
2. Developer’s Project Manager.  The Developer hereby designates 


_______________________as the Project Manager, who shall act as the 
Developer’s representative during the construction of the Improvements.  The 
Project Manager shall be available during construction hours on the job site or 
available by telephone at _______________________.   
 


3. Building Permits.  Building permits for Lots in the Plat shall not be issued until all 
Improvements have been constructed and approved by the City Planning Director, 
and the City Planning Director has certified that all “punch list” items have been 
completed to his satisfaction.  The “punch list” items are those items needed to 
complete all Improvements other than the planting of street trees, and the installation 
of the surface coat of bituminous concrete on streets that shall be completed during 
the construction season immediately following the construction season during 
which the binder course was installed.  
 


4. Other Laws Apply.  All applicable provisions of Chapter 66 of the City of 
Stoughton ordinances, and any other applicable ordinances or laws shall be adhered 
to with respect to the design, construction and installation of required 
improvements.  If there is a conflict between any law or regulation and this 
Agreement, the City Planning Director shall determine which shall control.  
 


5. Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended by a written amendment 
instrument approved and executed by the City and the Developer. 


 
6. No Release.  Nothing set forth in this Agreement shall be construed as, nor is 


intended to be, a waiver or release of any obligations imposed upon the Developer 
by Chapter 66, City of Stoughton ordinances, or any other applicable City of 
Stoughton ordinance, state statute, or administrative rule.  No waiver of any 
provision of this Agreement shall be deemed or constitute a waiver of any other 
provision, nor will it be deemed or constitute a continuing waiver unless expressly 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 11 


provided for by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by both the City and 
the Developer, nor shall the waiver of any default under this Agreement be deemed 
a waiver of any subsequent default or defaults of the same type.  The City’s failure 
to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not constitute approval of any 
wrongful act by the Developer or the acceptance of any improvements. 


 
7. Successors Bound.  This Agreement shall run with the land and shall be binding 


upon the Developer, its grantees, personal representatives, heirs, successors and 
assigns. 


 
8. No Vested Rights Created.  Except as provided by law, or as expressly provided 


in this Agreement, no vested right in connection with this project shall inure to the 
Developer.  The City does not warrant by this Agreement that the Developer is 
entitled to any required approvals.  


 
9. Severability.  Any illegal or unenforceable provision of this Agreement will be 


severed and the remainder of this Agreement will remain enforceable. 
 


10. Sovereign Immunity.  The provisions of this Agreement are not meant to, and do 
not imply or create any waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity. 


 
11. Written Notice.  Any written notification required under this Agreement shall be 


deemed to be served if it is personally delivered or sent by first class mail to the 
following: 


 
City of Stoughton 
Attn:  Planning Director 
207 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
 
Developer 
________________________ 
________________________ 
________________________ 


 
12. Insurance. 


 
A. General. 


 
The Developer shall obtain insurance acceptable to the City as required 
under this section.  The Developer shall maintain all required insurance 
under this section until Improvements have been accepted and during any 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 12 


subsequent period in which the Developer does work under this Agreement 
pursuant to the Improvement guarantee or otherwise. 


 
B. Certificates of Insurance. 


 
Certificates of Insurance on all policies specified shall be filed with the City 
clerk which shall include a fifteen (15) day prior written notice of material 
change or cancellation to the City and which clearly state that liability 
insurance is provided and, if applicable to work under this Agreement, 
explosion, collapse and underground coverage.  Explosion, collapse and 
underground coverage may be provided by the Developer’s contractor. 


 
C. Insurance. 


 
The minimum limits of liability shall be as follows: 
 


Employer’s Liability  
(if applicable) 


$100,000  Per Occurrence  


Comprehensive Motor Vehicle  
Liability, Bodily Injury &  
Property Damage Combined 
(if applicable)  


$1,000,000  Per Accident 


Comprehensive General Liability  $2,000,000 Per Occurrence 


Bodily Injury Property Damage $2,000,000 Aggregate 
 


The Developer may furnish coverage for bodily injury and property damage 
for Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Liability and Comprehensive General 
Liability through the use of primary liability policies or in a combination 
with an umbrella excess third party liability. 


 
Other coverages shall include the following: 


 
The Developer shall provide completed Operations and Products 
Liability coverage for the life of the Agreement and maintain coverage 
for a period of one (1) year after the Improvements have been accepted 
by the City. The liability limits shall be as required above for 
Comprehensive General Liability. 


 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 13 


The Developer shall provide Owner’s Protective Liability coverage 
(Independent Contractor Insurance). The liability limits shall be the 
same as required above for Comprehensive General Liability. 


 
Insurance required under this Agreement shall be carried with an insurer 
authorized to do business in Wisconsin by the Wisconsin Commissioner of 
Insurance. The City reserves the right to disapprove any insurance 
company. 


 
13. Indemnification. The Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its 


officers, agents and employees and the City Planning Director from and against all 
claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney’s fees arising out of or 
resulting from the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, damage, 
loss or expense (a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to 
injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself) including 
the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (b) is caused in whole or in part, by any 
negligent act or omission of the Developer, Developer's contractor, any 
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in 
part by a party indemnified hereunder provided, however, that such indemnification 
shall not extend to directions by the City or its employees to perform acts if the acts 
are performed in accordance with such direction. A claim for indemnification under 
this section shall be conditioned upon the City giving to the Developer, within thirty 
business days of receiving the same, written notice of any claim made against the 
City for which indemnification is sought and if requested to do so by the 
Developer’s insurance carrier, the City shall tender the defense of such claim to the 
Developer’s insurance carrier. 


 
In any and all claims against the City, its officers, agents and employees or the City 
Planning Director, by any employee of the Developer, Developer's contractor, any 
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 
section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of 
damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Developer, the Contractor 
or any Subcontractor under Worker’s Compensation Acts, disability benefit acts or 
other employee benefit acts. 


 
14. Indemnification for Environmental Contamination. The Developer shall 


indemnify, defend, and hold the City and its officers, employees, and agents and the 
City Planning Director harmless from any claims, judgments, damages, penalties, 
fines, costs, or loss (including reasonable fees for attorneys, consultants, and 
experts) that arise as a result of the presence or suspected presence in or on the real 
property dedicated or conveyed to the City by, under, pursuant to, or in connection 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 14 


with the Plat or this Agreement (including, but not limited to, utility easements, 
street right-of-way and lands for stormwater management facilities) of any toxic or 
hazardous substances in violation of environmental laws arising from any activity 
occurring prior to the acceptance of all Improvements.  Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the indemnification by the Developer shall include costs 
incurred in connection with any site investigation or any remedial, removal, or 
restoration work required by any local, state, or federal agencies because of the 
presence or suspected presence of toxic or hazardous substances in violation of 
environmental laws on or under the real property, whether in the soil, groundwater, 
air or other receptor. 


 
The City shall notify the Developer of the discovery of any contamination or of any 
facts or circumstances that reasonably indicate that such contamination may exist in 
or on the real property.  The City also agrees that following notification to the 
Developer that contamination may exist, the City shall make all reasonable 
accommodations to allow the Developer to examine the real property and conduct 
such clean-up operations as may be required by the appropriate local, state, or 
federal agencies to comply with applicable laws. 


 
15. Personal Liability of Public Officials. In carrying out any of the provisions of this 


Agreement or in exercising any power or authority granted to them thereby, there 
shall be no personal liability of the City’s officers, agents or employees, it being 
understood and agreed that in such matters they act as agents and representatives of 
the City. 


 
16. Attorney Fees.  If either party commences litigation, arbitration, or mediation to 


enforce the terms of this Agreement, the non-prevailing party shall pay all costs, 
including reasonable attorney fees and expert witness fees of the prevailing party.  
If the court, arbitrator, or mediator awards relief to both parties, each will bear its 
own costs. 


 
17. Default.  A default is defined herein as the Developer’s breach of, or failure to 


comply with, the terms of this Agreement.  The City reserves to itself all remedies 
available at law or equity as necessary to cure any default.  The City also reserves 
to itself the right to draw on letters of credit provided hereunder, and to specially 
assess costs against the property within the Plat, in addition to pursuing any other 
available remedies.  Remedies shall include, but not be limited to, stopping all 
construction in the approved Final Plat area and prohibiting the transfer or sale of 
lots. 


 
18. Entire Agreement.  This written agreement, and written amendments, shall 


constitute the entire agreement between the Developer and the City relating to the 
Plat. 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 15 


 
19. Benefits.  The benefits of this Agreement to the Developer are personal and shall 


not be assigned without the express written consent of the City.  Such approval may 
not be unreasonably withheld, but any unapproved assignment is void.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the burdens of this Agreement are personal 
obligations of the Developer and shall be binding on the heirs, successors and 
assigns of the Developer.  There is no prohibition on the right of the City to assign 
its rights under this Agreement.  The City shall release the original Developer’s 
Letter of Credit if it accepts new security from any developer or lender who obtains 
the property.  However, no act of the City shall constitute a release of the original 
Developer from its liability under this Agreement.   


 
20. Recording.  The City may record a copy of this Agreement with the Register of 


Deeds.  All costs of recording shall be paid by the Developer. 
 
21. Ownership Warranty.  The Developer hereby warrants that the Developer is the 


lawful Owner of and now lawfully possesses the real estate to be improved pursuant 
to this Agreement. 
 


 
 


22. Authority. Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either party represents 
and warrants that the person holds the position indicated beneath the person's 
signature and that the person has the requisite corporate or other authority to sign 
this Agreement on behalf of the party.  


 
23. Effective Date.  This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written 


above. 
 
 


[Signature pages follow.] 
  







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 16 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals as of 


the dates noted below. 
 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 
 
By ________________________________ 
Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
 
By ________________________________ 
Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 
COUNTY OF DANE 
 


Personally came before me this ______day of _______________, 2020 the above 
named Tim Swadley and Holly Licht, to me known to be the Mayor and City Clerk of the 
City of Stoughton, and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged the same. 
 
 


       
(Print Name) _____________________ 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My Commission: ___________________ 


 
  







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Abel\3OU2029- Development Agreement (Abel Court) - For Council.docx 
1120201411 17 


 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF DANE 
COUNTY 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
       Print name: ________________________ 
       Title: _____________________________ 


_ 
STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 
COUNTY OF DANE 
 
 
 Personally came before me this _____ day of _________________, 2020, the above named 
___________________________, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing 
instrument and acknowledged the same.  
 
 


______________________________________ 
Print Name: ________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My Commission ___________________________ 


(SEAL) 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP 
Attorneys for the City of Stoughton 
 
_________________________________  
By: Matthew P. Dregne 
 
This instrument drafted by and to be returned to: 
Matthew P. Dregne 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP  
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900  
P.O. Box 1784  
Madison, WI  53701-1784 





		06a-R-2020 Agreement for Abel Plat 2020

		06b-1-Abel Plat Agreement






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Resolution to approve the City Attorney Agreement for Legal Services with Stafford Rosenbaum for 


calendar year 2021 


 
Committee Action: Finance meets December 8, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
No change 


  
File Number: 


 
R-180-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
December 8, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney has offered a one-year contract proposal with no increase in the standard 


rates; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommends the proposed contract to the Common Council for 


approval 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the City Attorney Agreement 


for Legal Services with Stafford Rosenbaum for calendar year 2021 be approved. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


Matthew P. Dregne 
Government Law Team Leader 


222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900 
P.O. Box 1784 
Madison, WI  53701-1784 
mdregne@staffordlaw.com   
608.259.2618 


 


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\CORR\3OZ8795.DOCX 


1119201535 
  


November 19, 2020 


By Email:  tswadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
  


Mayor Tim Swadley 


City of Stoughton 


 


 Re: Stafford Rosenbaum 2021 Rates 


 


Dear Mayor Swadley:  


 


It has been a pleasure serving the City in 2020 and we look forward to continuing our relationship 


in 2021.  We recognize the difficult economic times our municipal clients are facing after the 


unprecedented challenges we have all experienced in 2020.  We are not proposing a rate increase 


for 2021, which means that the City’s rates will have remained the same for the last two years, and 


the next year.  I have included with this letter a proposed one-year contract for 2021.   


 


Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   


 


 


Best regards, 


STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP 


 


 
Matthew P. Dregne 


 


MPD:pcl 


Attachment 


 



mailto:tswadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\CORR\3OZ8795.DOCX 
1119201535 


 


 


STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP 


 


2021 RATES – SUN PRAIRIE 


 


 


Type of Services Description of Services 


  


Hourly 


Rates 


  


General 


Municipal  


Law Services 


Advising on issues of municipal law; attending 


meetings as directed; drafting municipal ordinances, 


resolutions, public construction contracts and other 


instruments as may be required; and performing such 


other duties as may be prescribed by law or requested. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 
 


$225 


$190 


$120 


 
 


  


Land Use and 
Development  
Related Services 


Advising and representing in the review, processing 


and action on land use and development-related 


matters, including annexation, zoning, land division, 


tax increment financing and urban service area 


amendments; negotiating and drafting permits, 


agreements and other documents relating to land use 


and development issues. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 
 


$275 


$225 


$135 


    


Additional 
Services, 
including  
Litigation, 
Environmental 
and Labor and 
Employment 
Services 


Rates charged for a particular matter will be 


determined on a case-by-case basis. 


Partners 
Associates 
Paralegals 
 


 


 


 







1  


AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES 


JANUARY 1, 2021 - DECEMBER 31, 2021 


 


It is hereby agreed by and between the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, hereinafter 


referred to as the "City," and the law firm of Stafford Rosenbaum LLP, hereinafter referred 


to as "City Attorney," as follows: 
 


1. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence January 1, 2021 


and shall terminate December 31, 2021, subject, however, to the termination 


provisions of paragraph 5. 


2. Duties and Responsibilities. The City hereby retains the City Attorney to provide 


such municipal legal services as shall, from time to time, be requested in 


accordance with the City's CITY ATTORNEY CONTACT POLICY attached as 


Attachment A. The City Attorney may assume that requests for legal services that 


are made by or authorized by the Mayor, the City Council, the City Clerk, the 


Finance Director, or the Planning Director are in accordance with the City's 


Attorney Contact Policy. 


3. Compensation.  The City shall pay for legal services on a combination fixed fee / 


hourly basis as follows: 
 


A. Fixed Fee Services - $4,800 per month. The City shall pay a monthly fixed 


fee of $4,800 which shall serve as the City Attorney's compensation for the 


following services: 


(1) Attendance at regular City Council meetings (not to exceed two 


meetings each month). The fixed fee will also serve as the City 


Attorney's compensation for up to one hour of time preparing with 


City staff for, and travel time and expense for attending, up to two 


regular City Council meetings each month. 


(2) Prosecution of ordinance violations in municipal court. The fixed fee 


shall not cover appeals from municipal court or trials in circuit court. 
 


B. Hourly Services.  Services not covered by the fixed fee shall be billed on 


an hourly basis, as follows: 


 
a. Partners $190 


b. Associates $175 


c. Paralegals $120 


C. The City shall reimburse the City Attorney for time spent traveling on City 


related business that is not covered by the above fixed fees at the hourly rates set 


forth in Section B above. 


D. The City shall reimburse the City Attorney for all expenses the City Attorney 







2  


incurs in connection with services provided to the City. 


E. The City Attorney shall provide to the City Finance Director an itemized 


statement each month that shows the total time worked and the nature of the work 


performed and the amount due the City Attorney.  The City shall pay any amounts 


due within 30 days of receipt of such an itemized statement. 


4. Conflict of Interest.  The City Attorney will notify the City of any real or potential 


conflict of interest regarding the City Attorney's representation of the City.  The City 


Attorney may decline or withdraw from representation of the City in a matter as a result 


of any real or potential conflict of interest. 


5. Termination. Either party, upon written notice to the other, may terminate this 


Agreement without cause upon the expiration of 90 days from the delivery of such 


written notice to the other party. In the event the City Attorney is unable to represent the 


City in any matter as a result of a conflict of interest, the City may terminate this 


Agreement immediately upon delivery of written notice of termination to the City 


Attorney.  In the event of termination, the City Attorney will be compensated for 


services rendered and expenses incurred prior to such termination in accordance with 


the terms set forth above. 


6. Personnel. It is understood that the City has engaged Stafford Rosenbaum to serve as 


the City Attorney based on the experience and qualifications of certain individual 


attorneys. In particular, it is understood that Matthew Dregne will be primarily 


responsible for matters other than ordinance prosecution, and Amy Collins O’Hara and 


Rachel Snyder will be primarily responsible for ordinance prosecution. The City 


understands that partners and associates other than Mr. Dregne and Ms. Collins O’Hara 


and Ms. Snyder may provide legal services to the City as well. If the City decides that it 


is not satisfied with the individuals who are performing legal services for the City, for 


any reason, the City may terminate this Agreement immediately upon delivery of written 


notice of termination to the City Attorney.  In the event of termination, the City Attorney 


will be compensated for services rendered and expenses incurred prior to such 


termination in accordance with the terms set forth above. 


7. Return of City Records. The City Attorney shall return to the City all City Records 


and files upon termination or expiration of this Agreement. 


8. Non-Assignment. The City Attorney's rights and obligations under this Agreement 


are not assignable without the City's prior written consent. 


9. Modification of Agreement. No modification of this Agreement will be valid unless 


it is in writing and is duly executed by both parties. The parties further agree that 


the provisions of this paragraph may not be waived, except as specifically herein set 


forth. 
 
 


 


 


 


 







3  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


Date ____________________  _______________________________________ 


      Mayor Tim Swadley  


 


Date ____________________  _______________________________________ 


      Holly Licht, City Clerk  


 


      STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP  


 


Date ____________________  _______________________________________ 


      Matthew P. Dregne, Partner 


Attachment:  City Attorney Contact Policy 







 


ATTACHMENT "A" 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
CITY ATTORNEY CONTACT POLICY 


There are times when the City, City officials and City staff need legal advice or legal .services 


from the City Attorney.  Because legal services are costly, because the City may already have 


legal opinions available, and because requests for legal services should be coordinated to avoid 


unnecessary expense, the City adopts this CITY ATTORNEY CONTACT POLICY.   


 


1. Any person seeking legal services from the City Attorney should first determine 


whether the City already has a legal opinion on file that addresses the question, the 


City Clerk will update the list of attorney opinions on a biannual basis and place them 


on a website with a hard copy available in the Clerk's .office at City Hall. ·Changes 


in the law or different circumstances may make it advisable to obtain legal advice 


even where the City has an existing opinion;  
 


2. The City Council, Mayor, City Clerk, Police Chief, Planning Director and Finance 


Director are each authorized to request legal services from the City Attorney, on the 


City's behalf, as they deem necessary.  


 


3. Any elected City official is authorized to directly request legal advice from the City 


Attorney on matters related to his or her individual compliance with the open 


meetings law, ethics laws, mid open records law.  Any elected City official or 


appointed member of any City committee or commission is authorized to request an 


advisory ethics opinion from the City Attorney pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.59(5)(a).  


 


4. Individual alderpersons, department heads and others who wish to request legal 


services may make such request through the City Council. Mayor or City Clerk. 


Except as provided in Sections 3 and 4, individual alderpersons, department heads and 


others who wish to request legal services directly from the City Attorney shall do so.as 


follows: 


a. The person requesting legal services shall inform the Mayor or City Clerk that 


he or she will be contacting the City Attorney. 


The person requesting legal services shall ask the City Attorney for estimate of 


the amount of time required to provide the legal services. If the estimated time 


is more than 1 hour, the City Council, Mayor or City Clerk must approve the 


request for legal services. · 


 


5. Legal services requests relating to personnel, employment or labor law related 


matters shall be directed to the City Clerk/Personnel Director, unless such request 


pertains to the City Clerk/Personnel Director, in which case such request shall be 


directed to the Mayor. 


 


6. Written legal opinions from the City Attorney shall generally be provided to the 


Mayor, Alderpersons, end Department Heads, as deemed appropriate by the City 







 


Attorney, Mayor and requestor. In some cases, such as ethics opinions under Wis. 


Stat. § 19.59(5)(a), confidentiality rules may apply to legal opinions.· In some cases, 


distribution of communications with legal council may need to be restricted to protect 


the City's interests, as determined by the Mayor and/or City Council, in consultation 


with the City Attorney.  Written and verbal communications between City Officials 


and the City Attorney may also be privileged.  No person may disclose privileged 


communications without prior approval from the City Council or the Mayor. 


 


Approved by Council: .June 23, 2009 





		07a-R- -2020 City Attorney 2021 Contract

		07b-Agreement for Legal Services 2021



